
 
 
May 20, 2025 
 
Phillip Clancy 
Applied Technology & Management, Inc.  
100 Southpark Blvd., Suite 407 
St. Augustine, FL 32086 
 
Re: Letter of Permission (LOP), Maintenance and Rehabilitation of the Existing 

Revetment and Sand Dunes Within Shore Protection Act (SPA) Jurisdiction, Atlantic 
Ocean, St. Simons Island, Glynn County, Georgia (SAS-2019-00157). 

 
Dear Mr. Clancy: 
 
This Letter of Permission (LOP) is in response to your request dated February 13, 2025, on behalf 
of Glynn County, for authorization to perform maintenance to the existing rock revetment within 
jurisdiction of the Shore Protection Act (SPA). An LOP was previously issued on November 7, 
2019; June 9, 2020; and on October 23, 2020. LOP20200125 authorized all phases of the project 
including the placement of stone on public upland fronting private property and private property 
fronting private upland. However, per the applicant, due to funding limits and deadlines, the 
project focused on the rehabilitation of the existing revetment on public property fronting the 
upland. For the current request, the applicant has obtained updated survey data along the project 
limits to refine and reflect the current conditions and update the anticipated stone quantities.  
 
Repairs and maintenance to the existing rock revetment will rehabilitate and raise the crest of the 
elevation to one foot above the original 1960’s design elevation (raise to +8.5’ NAVD88) within 
the existing footprint. The revetment repair and maintenance work will include areas from Gould 
Street to Arnold Road and consist of placing 1,400 tons of rock along 1,260 linear feet of public 
property that fronts private property. Additionally, 2,330 tons of rock will be placed along 1,400 
linear feet of private property for which the County has obtained agreements with the private 
property owners. The work will occur on the various parcels as depicted in the attached project 
request.  
 
Armor stone will be clean stone and have a median diameter of 2.7ft. and a density equal to or 
greater than 160 pounds per cubic foot. The armor stone will be trucked onto the beach, through 
various staging and access areas identified on the drawings, with articulated off-road dump trucks 
and excavators. Due to restricted upland access corridors along the revetment, the stone will be 
trucked off-road through identified accesses and along the shoreline within a 30ft. beach 
construction corridor. Armor stone will be field fit up to either side of existing crosswalks within 
the project area, with the exception of the Wyley Street crosswalk. The Wyley Street crosswalk 
will be temporarily removed to allow access to the beach area in front of the revetment. Once work 
at this section of the revetment is completed, the crosswalk will be returned to the existing 
footprint. Armor stone may be temporarily stockpiled within the access corridor directly adjacent 
to active work areas but will be utilized or removed prior to the end of each day. No material or 
equipment will be staged on the beach overnight. All work will be conducted during mid to low 
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tides, outside of sea turtle nesting season (May 1st – October 31st), and during daylight hours. No 
excavation or rock placement will occur outside of the existing revetment footprint.  
 
The Department authorizes the maintenance activities within SPA jurisdiction as depicted above 
and in the attached project description and drawings. The project will begin no sooner than 
November 1st, 2025 and be completed by March 30th, 2026. This includes the time needed to 
remove all equipment and materials and return all affected areas to a condition approximate to, or 
better than, that which existed before commencement of the activity. 
 
This LOP is not meant to exempt the above referenced activities from future environmental laws. 
No unauthorized equipment, materials, or debris may be placed, disposed of, or stored in 
jurisdictional areas. Any incidental impacts associated with this project must be rectified by fully 
restoring areas to their pre-construction topographic and vegetative states. This LOP is valid for 
the above referenced project. Any change in the use, location, dimensions, or configuration of the 
approved project, without prior notification and approval from this office could result in the 
revocation of this LOP and in the required removal of materials and related structures. Public 
access may be temporarily affected in equipment staging areas and within the 30ft. construction 
corridor. This project must comply with all other Federal, State, and local statutes, ordinances and 
regulations.  
 
If you have any further questions or concerns, please contact Beth Byrnes at (912)-264-7218.  
  
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Jill Andrews 
Chief, Coastal Management Section 
 
Enclosures: Project Request, Drawings, Site Photos 
 
Cc: Acothren@glynncounty-ga.gov  
 
File:  LOP20250016 
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From: Noble, Josh
To: Phillip Clancy
Cc: Adam Cothren; Ethan Ross; Byrnes, Elizabeth
Subject: RE: St. Simons Phase II Revetment Rehabilitation
Date: Friday, February 14, 2025 1:34:12 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Thank you Phillip, we will follow up if additional information is needed.

Sincerely,
Josh

From: Phillip Clancy <PClancy@appliedtm.com> 
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2025 1:31 PM
To: Noble, Josh <Josh.Noble@dnr.ga.gov>
Cc: Adam Cothren <acothren@glynncounty-ga.gov>; Ethan Ross <Ethan.Ross@appliedtm.com>;
Byrnes, Elizabeth <elizabeth.byrnes@dnr.ga.gov>
Subject: RE: St. Simons Phase II Revetment Rehabilitation

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Josh,

The type of equipment used will play a role in the total number of trucks required.
Additionally, trucks will vary in how full they are which will affect the total count of trucks
required.

Our total proposed tonnage is 3,730 tons (for reference phase I was 5,500 tons +/-). The
dump trailers sent from the quarry typically average about 20 tons per truck. This would
result in roughly 187 dump trailers from the quarry to the site.

Once on site the rock will be reloaded onto articulated offroad dump trucks. These trucks
can vary in capacity, to be conservative if we assume these are smaller capacity trucks
they can typically carry 15 tons per truck. This would result in roughly 249 dump trucks
delivering rock to the various parcels within the limits of the project.

If we assume the bulk of construction would be completed over a 3 month calendar period
(~65 work days). It results in roughly 4 trucks per day transiting the work area. I believe this
to be pretty consistent with what was experienced in the phase 1 work.

Thank you,
Phil Clancy

Phillip Clancy, PE (FL, GA)
Professional Engineer
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From: Phillip Clancy
To: Byrnes, Elizabeth
Subject: RE: St. Simons Phase II Revetment Rehabilitation
Date: Friday, May 9, 2025 10:16:20 AM
Attachments: image001.png

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good Morning,
 
Armor stone will be field fit up to either side of existing walkovers. The public walkover at
the end of wyley street is the only walkover within the project extents that is planned for
temporary removal to allow access to the beach area in front of the revetment. Once that
section of revetment is complete the walkover will be set back in place.
 
Thanks,
Phil Clancy
 
Phillip Clancy, PE (FL, GA)
Professional Engineer

100 Southpark Blvd., Suite 407
St. Augustine, FL 32086
Direct: 904.310.1902
Cell: 717.798.1070
www.appliedtm.com
www.geosyntec.com
 
 
 
From: Byrnes, Elizabeth <elizabeth.byrnes@dnr.ga.gov> 
Sent: Friday, May 9, 2025 8:52 AM
To: Phillip Clancy <pclancy@appliedtm.com>
Subject: RE: St. Simons Phase II Revetment Rehabilitation
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. If you have any suspicion, please confirm with the sender
verbally that this email is authentic. If you suspect fraud, click "Phish Alert Report."

 
Good morning,
 
What is the plan for the crosswalks in this request?
 
Thank you,
 
Beth Byrnes
Coastal Permit Coordinator
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